


















DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

August 21 & 22, 2017 
LIHU‘E , KAUAʻI  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

C-ITEMS 

OFFICE OF THE CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF HAWAII 
 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
 

August 21 & 22, 2017  
 
 

TO:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
FROM: Niniau Simmons, NAHASDA Manager 
   
SUBJECT: C-1 Draft 2017 Annual Performance Report NAHASDA     
 
 
THIS SUBMITTAL WILL BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER or AT THE TABLE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO.  C-1 



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

August 21 & 22, 2017 
LIHU‘E , KAUAʻI  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

D-ITEMS 

HOMESTEAD SERVICES DIVISION 
 
 
 
 









































































































DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

August 21 & 22, 2017 
LIHU‘E, KAUAʻI  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

E-ITEMS 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
 
 
 
 











DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

August 21 & 22, 2017 
LIHU‘E, KAUAʻI  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

F-ITEMS 

LAND MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF HAWAII 

 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

 

August 21 & 22, 2017  

 

 

TO:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

 

FROM: Kahana Albinio, Acting Land Management Division Administrator 

   

SUBJECT: F-1 Renewal of Right of Entry Permits, Kaua’i Island (see exhibit) 

   F-2 Renewal of Right of Entry Permits, O’ahu Island (see exhibit) 
     

 

 

THIS SUBMITTAL WILL BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER or AT THE TABLE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM NO.  F-1, F-2 















































































































































































DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

August 21 & 22, 2017 
LIHU‘E, KAUAʻI  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

G-ITEMS 

PLANNING DIVISION 
 
 
 
 





 

- 2 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

the water flows from the Pu‘u Moe Divide down to the Pu‘u ‘Öpae 
reservoir on DHHL land.  Energy would also be generated as water 
flows through the pressurized pipelines from Pu‘u ‘Öpae reservoir 
to the Mänä reservoir located on State lands Executive Ordered to 
ADC.   

 
The unique feature of this project is the pumped storage hydro 

component which utilizes the abundance of solar energy available on 
the west side, in order to pump water from the Mänä reservoir up to 
the Pu‘u ‘Öpae reservoir where the water would be stored and 
released at night to generate electricity during evening peak hours 
when it is most needed.  In this way, the project meets Kaua‘i’s 
challenge of using cheap daytime solar energy to meet the demand 
for energy during peak evening hours.   

 
The project requires a number of project components to be 

connected and managed as one system, even though they cross agency 
lines and landowner boundaries.  To make the project work, KIUC 
must negotiate lease agreements with several landowners to secure 
the required components of the project, which include:  

• Koke‘e ditch repairs and upgrades;  

• Rehabilitation of Pu‘u Lua, Pu‘u ‘Öpae, and Mänä 
reservoirs; 

• Upper and lower access road improvements and maintenance; 

• Conversion of the open ditches to underground pressurized 
pipelines from the Pu‘u Moe Divide to Pu‘u ‘Öpae and from 
Pu‘u ‘Öpae to the Mänä reservoir;  

• Two powerhouses, located at Pu‘u ‘Öpae and the Mänä 
reservoir; and  

• A solar photovoltaic system adjacent to the Mänä 
reservoir that provides power to pump water from the Mänä 
reservoir up to Pu‘u ‘Öpae reservoir. 

 
 Unlike the renewable energy projects that DHHL has considered 
in the past that required large areas of trust land for a solar 
‘farm’ or for the cultivation of biomass crops, the development 
footprint for this project is very small.  The specific elements 
that would be located on DHHL lands include: 

• Rehabilitation and operation of Pu‘u ‘Öpae Reservoir, 
including the construction of a powerhouse in the lands 
surrounding the reservoir (approximately 5-acres); and 

• Underground utility lines and pressurized pipelines 
coming from the Pu‘u Moe Divide as it enters our property 
down to Pu‘u ‘Öpae and an underground pressurized 
pipeline that starts at Pu‘u ‘Öpae and exits DHHL lands 
just before it reaches the Mänä Reservoir. 
 



 

- 3 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

 The components that would be developed on DHHL lands are 
critical elements of the hydroelectric project.  In order to secure 
these critical elements, KIUC is requesting a long-term, non-
exclusive easement for the underground pipelines and a long-term 
General Lease for the Pu‘u ‘Öpae reservoir, including approximately 
5-acres of land surrounding the reservoir.  In the initial phase, 
when KIUC is conducting due diligence studies, KIUC is requesting a 
Right-of-Entry permit for the term of approximately 3 years.  
 
 
BENEFICIARY CONSULTATION 

 
Notification 

 
On May 31, 2017 DHHL mailed notification letters (Exhibit B) 

to all Kaua‘i Lessees and all Applicants on the Kaua‘i Area and 
Islandwide Waitlists.  After controlling for duplicates and 
combining records addressed to the same address, a total of 2,886 
letters were mailed.  The mail out notified beneficiaries that DHHL 
would conduct two (2) Beneficiary Consultation meetings and two (2) 
Public Hearings to present information and hear comments and 
concerns on KIUC’s proposed Waimea Hydroelectric Project.  Meeting 
dates, times and locations were identified, as well as a map of the 
project area and responses to the following “Frequently Asked 
Questions:” 
 

• How much land is contemplated for this hydroelectric project? 

• Why would the department use a portion of its Waimea lands for 
a hydroelectric project instead of awarding homesteads to 
people on the waiting list? 

• How will a hydroelectric project benefit DHHL and its 
beneficiaries?  

• Is this project consistent with DHHL Plans for the region?  
 
Presentation 

 
 DHHL scheduled two (2) Beneficiary Consultation meetings on 
Kaua‘i in order to present information about the proposed project 
to Kaua‘i beneficiaries, to establish a written record of 
beneficiary comments and concerns about the project, and to respond 
to questions about the proposed project.   
 
 The first Beneficiary Consultation meeting was held on 
Tuesday, June 13, 2017 at the Kekaha Elementary School Cafeteria 
from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  Twenty-five (25) people signed in at 
the registration table; 20 indicated that they were DHHL 
Beneficiaries and 5 indicated that they were not DHHL 
Beneficiaries.  The second Beneficiary Consultation meeting was 
held on Wednesday, June 14, 2017 at the Kapa‘a Elementary School 



 

- 4 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

Cafeteria from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m., however, no one attended the 
second consultation meeting.   
 
 Beneficiaries who attended the meeting received a print out of 
the powerpoint presentation (Exhibit C).  A summary of the 
presentation is presented below: 

• William Aila, Jr., Deputy Director of DHHL opened the meeting 
by explaining the purpose of the meeting and the different ways 
that beneficiaries could submit comments on the proposal.   

• Julie-Ann Cachola, Planner in DHHL’s Planning Office explained 
how the project was consistent with DHHL Plans, including the 
Kaua‘i Island Plan Land Use Designations and the West Kaua‘i 
Regional Plan priority projects. 

• Jonathan Scheuer, PhD, DHHL’s Water Consultant, presented 
background information on DHHL’s Water Policy Plan, the 
importance of Interim Instream Flow Standards, DHHL water 
reservations and how they are determined, the landmark 
mediation agreement regarding the use of surface water in West 
Kaua‘i and how it relates to the proposed project. 

• Brad Rockwell, Power Supply Manager for KIUC and KIUCʻs 
Consultants, Jason Hines and Dawn Hines of the Joule Group, LLC 
explained the changes in the energy industry that have made it 
very challenging for KIUC to keep the cost of energy production 
low, while managing a mix of energy sources while also having 
to invest in the development of new renewable energy projects.  
The KIUC team presented a detailed description of the proposed 
project, including the timeline for implementation and an 
explanations of how the project will benefit DHHL, DHHL 
beneficiaries, the larger community, the agriculture industry, 
and KIUC.  

• William Aila, Jr., DHHL’s Deputy Director, explained the next 
steps involved with the project, including two public hearings 
scheduled for July 12, 2017, the preparation of this 
Beneficiary Consultation report for the August Hawaiian Homes 
Commission meeting.  He reminded people that DHHL will continue 
to accept comments up until the comment deadline of July 14, 
2017.  He noted that details of the long-term land disposition 
were not available because negotiations were still in progress; 
the details would be submitted to the HHC.   

• Upon the conclusion of the presentation, the Deputy opened the 
floor for questions and comments.  Beneficiaries were also 
given the option to submit their questions and comments in 
writing on the comment forms provided at the registration 
table. 
 

 



 

- 5 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

Beneficiary Consultation Findings 

 
 Exhibit D presents a compilation of all oral and written 
comments received, sign-in sheets, and written comments submitted 
on the forms provided.  To summarize, fourteen (14) people provided 
oral testimonies.  In addition, DHHL received thirteen (13) 
completed comment forms.  Of the twenty-seven (27) comments 
submitted, 20 (74%) expressed support for the project.  The 
remaining seven (7) comments raised questions about the project 
without expressing whether or not they supported the project.  No 
one expressed any opposition to the project.   
 
REQUIRED PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 Chapter 171-95.3, HRS allows the Hawaiian Homes Commission to 
lease DHHL lands to renewable energy producers without public 
auction, provided that DHHL inform the public prior to the lease of 
Hawaiian Home Lands for a proposed renewable energy project by 
conducting at least two (2) public hearings on the island where the 
land will be leased.  The notice for the public hearing must be 
published in separate daily or weekly publications whose combined 
circulation is at the level of statewide circulation.  During the 
meeting, the Hawaiian Homes Commission is required to distribute an 
outline of the proposed renewable energy project and must receive 
testimony from interested parties and the general public at each 
public hearing.    
 
Public Hearing Notice (Exhibit E) 

 

 On June 28, 2017 pursuant to HRS Chapter 171-95.3, DHHL 
published a legal notice titled “Proposed Land Disposition of 
Hawaiian Home Lands for a Hydroelectric Project in the Waimea 
District, on the island of Kaua‘i” in the Honolulu Star-Advertiser, 
The Garden Island, West Hawai‘i Today, the Hawai‘i Tribune-Herald, 
and The Maui News newspapers.  The notice stated that on Wednesday, 
July 12, 2017 from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon at the Kaua‘i State 
Office Building and from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at the King 
Kaumuali‘i Elementary School, the Hawaiian Homes Commission would 
provide information on KIUC’s proposed hydroelectric project and 
would receive testimony and comments on the proposed project.  
 
Public Hearings Held on Kaua‘i 

  

 Jobie Masagatani, Chairman of the Hawaiian Homes Commission 
presided over the Public Hearings held on Wednesday, July 12, 2017 
at the State Office Building from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon and at 
King Kaumuali‘i Elementary School from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
William Aila, Jr., Deputy Director of DHHL gave the presentation, 
which was available as a handout for all attendees (Exhibit F).   
 



 

- 6 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

Eleven (11) people attended the Public Hearing held in the 
morning at the Kaua‘i State Office Building and twelve (12) people 
attended the Public Hearing held in the evening at the King 
Kaumuali‘i Elementary School.  Exhibit G provides a compilation of 
oral and written testimonies received, sign-in sheets and the 
written comments that were submitted.  

 
A total of twenty-three (23) people attended the Public 

Hearings; two (2) people identified themselves as beneficiaries.  
Eight (8) people provided oral and/or written testimonies.  Seven 
(7) were in favor of the project.  One person did not indicate 
support or opposition to the project, however she stated that she 
was an heir to the property located at Pu‘u ‘Öpae and that DHHL 
does not have clear title to the Project lands.  She asked, “What 
action is DHHL engaging in to insure that the KIUC contract is 
enforceable for a 65-year lease?”   
 
 In light of the low attendance at the Beneficiary Consultation 
meetings and the Public Hearings, staff would like Commissioners to 
note that KIUC conducted many community meetings in the past 7 
years to discuss the hydroelectric project.  More recently, in May 
2017, KIUC held an informational meeting for homestead 
beneficiaries in Kekaha and in June 2017, KIUC met with homestead 
leaders in order to present an update on the project and to hear 
and respond to any questions or concerns they might have had.  DHHL 
staff attended both meetings as non-participant observers.  Staff 
noted that questions and concerns raised by the homesteaders were 
adequately addressed during the meetings and that beneficiaries 
were clearly in support of the project.   
 
  



 

- 7 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

SUMMARY FINDINGS 
 
 This section combines the comments made during the Beneficiary 
Consultation meeting and the two (2) Public Hearings.  
 
 Attendees who expressed support for the project often 
identified the reasons for their support, which were tallied and 
summarized below: 
 

BC 

Comments 

PH 

Comments Reasons for Support 

9 3 

Water:  Repair, restoration and 
maintenance of Pu‘u ‘Öpae, which 
provides water to DHHL lands; it 
provides access to water and protects 
beneficiary/DHHL water rights. 

8 6 

Infrastructure: The project provides for 
the development and maintenance of 
infrastructure on DHHL lands, which 
helps because DHHL does not have the 
funds to make these lands available to 
address Kaua‘i’s Waitlist 

6 4 

Renewable Energy: The project moves the 
community closer to sustainability, 
meeting renewable energy goals and 
ensuring that water resources are not 
wasted. 

4 1 

Stewardship: The project provides 
opportunities for beneficiaries to use 
the area and to take care of lands in 
the area 

*The number of comments exceed the 20 beneficiaries who supported 
the project because beneficiaries often cited more than one reason 
for their support. 
 
 
Recommended Action 

 DHHL staff respectfully requests approval as recommended. 



 

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae 

cachju
Text Box
Exhibit A:  Project Area Map and DHHL Lands

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STATE OF HAWAII 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

P. O. BOX 1879 

HONOLULU, HAWAII  96805 

 

May 31, 2017 

 

 

Aloha Kaua‘i Hawaiian Home Lands Beneficiaries, 

 

The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) will be holding two Beneficiary 

Consultation meetings and two Public Hearings to share information and accept comments 

regarding a renewable energy hydroelectric project proposed by the Kaua‘i Island Utility 

Cooperative (KIUC) that would be partially located on DHHL lands in Waimea, Kaua‘i.   

 

The attached map shows the approximate area where the proposed hydroelectric project 

would be located on DHHL lands.  On the other side of the map are some “Frequently Asked 

Questions” that provide general information about the project.  Details on the proposed project 

will be presented at the Beneficiary Consultation meetings and Public Hearings which have been 

scheduled as follows:   

 

 

BENEFICIARY CONSULTATION MEETINGS LOCATION AND TIME 

1. June 13, 2017 (Tuesday) Kekaha Elementary School Cafeteria 

8140 Kekaha Road, Kekaha 

6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

2. June 14, 2017 (Wednesday) Kapa‘a Elementary School Cafeteria 

4886 Kawaihau Road, Kapa‘a 

6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (open to the public) LOCATION AND TIME 

1. July 12, 2017 (Wednesday) Kaua‘i State Office Building 

Conference Rooms A and B 

3060 ‘Eiwa Street, 2nd Floor, Līhu‘e  

9:00 a.m. to Noon 

2. July 12, 2017 (Wednesday) King Kaumuali‘i Elementary School Cafeteria 

4380 Hanamā‘ulu Rd., Līhu‘e 

6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

 

DAVID Y. IGE 
GOVERNOR 

STATE OF HAWAII 

 

WILLIAM J. AILA, JR. 
DEPUTY TO THE CHAIRMAN 

SHAN S. TSUTSUI 
LT. GOVERNOR 

STATE OF HAWAII 

  

cachju
Text Box
EXHIBIT B:  Beneficiary Notification Letter

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit B

cachju
Text Box
Beneficiary Notification Letter



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit B

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit B

cachju
Text Box
Beneficiary Notification Letter



 

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae 

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit B



FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 

PROPOSED KIUC RENEWABLE ENERGY HYDROELECTRIC 

PROJECT AT WAIMEA 
 

 

Q: How much of our Trust lands would be used for the proposed hydroelectric project? 

Waimea lands include approximately 15,000 acres or 72% of the Hawaiian Home Lands 

Trust on Kaua‘i.  The proposed hydroelectric project would use a small fraction of the 

Waimea lands. The approximate size and location of that use is shown on the attached 

map. 

 

Q: Why would the department use a portion of our Waimea Hawaiian Home Lands 

Trust for a hydroelectric project instead of awarding farming and ranching 

homesteads to HHCA beneficiaries on the waiting list? 

The DHHL Waimea lands are largely dry, steep, and inaccessible.  Less than one third of 

the parcel was once used for sugar cultivation, and those are much of the same lands that 

could be used for future homesteading – IF water and access is provided.  Allowing the 

development of a hydroelectric project on a small portion of the Waimea Trust lands is a 

way to have another party develop water, roads and electric infrastructure so that the 

lands can be used for homestead development.   

 

Q:   How will a hydroelectric project benefit DHHL and its beneficiaries? 

The main benefit is that the proposed hydroelectric project will bring water to West 

Kaua‘i Trust lands.  The water will service existing pastoral lots and allow the future 

development of new homestead lots.  The proposed project will shift the cost of 

developing and maintaining key infrastructure (roads, electricity and water) from DHHL 

to the energy developer.  This will open the lands for beneficiary use and the 

development of new homestead lots.   

 

Q: Is this project consistent with DHHL Plans for the region?  

Yes, the proposed project is consistent with DHHL’s West Kaua‘i Regional Plan which 

was developed with Waimea, Kekaha, and Hanapēpē homestead beneficiaries through an 

extensive regional planning process.  The proposed hydroelectric project is consistent 

with, and helps to implement, two Priority Projects: 1) the development of an agricultural 

and water plan; and 2) the development of renewable energy projects that are compatible 

with agriculture.  The West Kaua‘i Regional Plan can be accessed online at: 

http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/regional-plans/kauai-regional-plans/ 

 

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit B



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 1

KIUC’s Proposal to Develop a
Pumped-Storage Hydroelectric Project

at Waimea, Kaua‘i

Beneficiary Consultation MeetingBeneficiary Consultation Meeting

Kekaha Elementary School
Tuesday, June 13, 2017

6:00 to 8:00 p.m.

Kapa‘a Elementary School
Wednesday, June 14, 2017

6:00 to 8:00 p.m.

Agenda
I. PURPOSE OF BENEFICIARY CONSULTATION

• Present Background Information
• KIUC will Present their Proposed Project
• Answer Questions 
• Beneficiary Comments

II. DHHL INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION
• How to Submit Comments
• DHHL Lands and Plans
• Mediation Agreement for the Waimea Watershed Area

III. KIUC PRESENTATION
IV. NEXT STEPS
V. CLARIFYING QUESTIONS/ANSWERS
V. BENEFICIARY COMMENTS

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 2

1. You can present your comments tonight:
• Sign-in at the registration table, listen for your name and be ready to speak.
• Each speaker has 3 minutes to share their mana‘o
• State your name and let us know if you are a lessee, applicant or if you are not a DHHL 

Beneficiary.
• Please indicate whether you support the project, support the project with 

reservations, or don’t support the project
2. You can write your concerns down on the half-sheet blank and turn it into 

the staff at the registration table.
3. You can think about it and submit written comments later— deadline for 

comments is July 14, 2017.  Written comments can be:
• Emailed to the Planning Office at: DHHL.Planning@hawaii.gov
• Mailed to:  DHHL Planning Office, P.O. Box 1879, Honolulu, HI  96805

How to Submit Comments

Kaua‘i Island Plan, 2004
LEGEND

General Ag.

Pastoral

Special District

Future Devmt

Conservation

Residential

Subsistence Ag

Community Use

15,061 acres
(72% of HHLs on Kaua‘i)

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 3

Management of water resources 
and roads to access these remote 
lands are vital to utilizing the lands 
for homesteading purposes.

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae
The Kaua‘i Island Plan designates the Pu‘u
‘Ōpae area as “Special District” which 
indicates the presence of a number of 
unusual opportunities and/or constraints 
that require more detailed planning.  

West Kaua‘i Regional Plan 2011
Beneficiaries identified 5 Priority Projects in West Kaua‘i.  
The Proposed Hydro Project helps to implement 2 of the 5 Priority Projects:

1. Develop an Agricultural and Water Plan
• Pu‘u ‘Ōpae reservoir should be maintained and the irrigation system rehabilitated. 
• An agricultural master plan should be developed.

2. Develop Renewable Energy Projects Compatible with Agriculture
The community agreed on development guidelines for the Waimea parcel: 
• Renewable energy is generally a good idea. 
• Large amounts of homestead land should not be given exclusively to any one entity. 
• Any license or general lease agreement for renewable energy development should be structured to 

preserve or support agricultural and cultural activities along with the development of renewable energy 
systems. 

• Land Use Designations in the Kaua‘i Island Plan should be maintained
• Any agreement for the use of lands should negotiate direct benefits, beyond simple rent income, to DHHL 

and the beneficiary community. 
The community indicated a willingness to support projects that meet these goals.

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 4

Documents & Event Chronology 

Year Event

2004 DHHL Kaua‘i Island Plan Adopted

2011 DHHL West Kaua‘i Regional Plan Adopted

2013 HHC Authorizes seeking Waimea River Water Reservation

2014 HHC Water Policy Plan Approved

2015 Reservation Petition for Waimea River Submitted

2017 Mediation Agreement Passed
Modified Reservation Submitted

• Po‘ai Wai Ola and West Kaua‘i Watershed Alliance IIFS 
Petition & Waste Complaint

• DHHL Water Reservation Petition for 33 mgd
• Both filed to Water Commission
• CWRM asked parties to mediate

⁻ Po‘ai Wai Ola
⁻ ADC
⁻ KAA
⁻ DHHL
⁻ KIUC

Origins of Mediated SettlementOrigins of Mediated Settlement

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 5

• The minimum a stream needs to protect Public Trust Uses
• Most streams in the state: IIFS is 1987 Status Quo (DRY)
• Only new IIFS have been set through litigation

⁻ Waiāhole
⁻ Nā Wai ‘Ehā
⁻ East Maui

• Most took decades to settle

What are Interim Instream Flow Standards?What are Interim Instream Flow Standards?

• HHC & DHHL guide for managing water kuleana
• Developed after two years of consultation
• Four priority goals

1. Communication
2. Advocacy
3. Water Assets Inventory
4. Watershed protection

• Specific goal to seek reservations of water

DHHL Water Policy PlanDHHL Water Policy Plan

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 6

• Waters set aside by CWRM and/or BLNR for 
future use by DHHL

• Done so far for groundwater on
⁻ O‘ahu
⁻ Moloka‘i
⁻ Keauhou (Kona, Hawai‘i Island)

• Designated vs. non-Designated areas

What are Water Reservations?What are Water Reservations?

• DHHL bases reservation petitions on:
⁻ Island Plans
⁻ Regional Plans
⁻ Short and long term needs
⁻ Established water duties where available
⁻ Best research where no approved duties available
⁻ Knowledge of the area

• CWRM can accept, reject, or modify
• CWRM to consider June 20, 2017

Granting of Water ReservationsGranting of Water Reservations

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 7

• Approved April 18, 2017

• Set fundamental principles

• Set a non-litigated IIFS / modified diversions

• Monitoring

• Water for actual ADC / KAA uses

• Consideration of a modified DHHL reservation petition

• Possible renewable energy on DHHL lands 

• Timeframe for KIUC to secure all land commitments
⁻ Beneficiary consultation needs explicitly considered

• Retirement or rebuild Waiawa hydro

Mediation Agreement for the
Waimea Watershed Area

Mediation Agreement for the
Waimea Watershed Area

• Unprecedented settlement of complicated issues

• Immediate water in streams

• Two years (not ten or twenty)

• DHHL reserved its rights to petition for full long term 
water needs

• If granted, first surface water reservation for DHHL

• CWRM sees it as a possible model for other disputes

• Not yet fully implemented!

Mediation AgreementMediation Agreement

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 8

Kaua‘i’s Energy Mix

2017

Biomass 
12%Hydro 

9%

Oil 56%

Hydro 
9%

Oil 91%

$69 million oil
$4 million renewable

$39 million oil
$29 million renewable

Oil 91% Solar
23%

2010

80% solar penetration; 97% renewable

Kaua‘i’s Daily Energy Supply

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 9

Kaua‘i’s Solar Challenge

• Most of Kaua‘i’s daytime demand 
for electricity will soon be met 
with solar

• The challenge is moving cheap 
solar power to evening peak hours

• Pumped storage provides a way to 
store solar energy and release 
energy when it’s most needed

Renewable Energy Outlook for 2023

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 10

Integrated Energy Project Proposal
• Renewable energy resource for island of Kaua‘i

– Up to 25 MW of pumped storage hydro
– Store and release hydro
– New PV capacity

• Irrigation water delivered through ditch and project pipeline to DHHL lands 
and ADC/KAA

• Primary project components
– Koke‘e ditch repairs and upgrades
– Rehabilitation of Pu‘u Lua, Pu‘u ‘Ōpae, and Mānā reservoirs
– Two new sections of buried pipeline
– Two new powerhouses

• KIUC operates and maintains the Koke‘e Ditch system and Pu‘u Lua, Pu‘u
‘Ōpae, and Mānā Reservoirs

How Does the Project Work?

Pumping up 
to middle

X
Filling from 

lower

To 
fields

To 
fields

Filling 
from 

streams

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 11

Filling 
from 

streams
Flowing 
down to 
generate

Flowing 
down to 
generate

To 
fields

To 
fields

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 12

Pu‘u Lua
260 MG

Waiakoali
Diversion

Kawaikōī
Diversion

Kauaikinana
DiversionKōke‘e

Diversion

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae
88 MG

Mānā
44 MG

Kōke‘e Ditch

New Gates at Pu‘u Moe Divide

Open Ditch to ADC Mauka lands

New Pipe

DHHL Gravity Fed 
Irrigation

to Pastoral Lots

DHHL Irrigation
to areas above 

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae

DHHL gravity fed 
irrigation

from Pu‘u ‘Ōpae

Irrigation to KAA

New Mānā Pump House

New Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Pump House

DHHL Lands

Direction of Water Flow

Pu‘u Lua Reservoir - Current

Pu‘u Lua Reservoir after Rehabilitation

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 13

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir - Current

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir –
During Sugar Operations

Mānā Reservoir – During Sugar Operations

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 14

Pictures of Waimea Resources

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir repairDitch repair and monitoring

Pu‘u Lua source of water Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir water storage site Drop from Pu‘u ‘Ōpae to Mānā plain.

Improved road access & waterline repairs

DHHL Benefits

• Delivery of water to DHHL mauka lands
• Rehabilitation and maintenance of Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir
• Road improvements and maintenance
• Electrical power at Pu‘u ‘Ōpae
• Rehabilitation and maintenance of Pu‘u Lua Reservoir 
• Repairs/upgrades and maintenance and operation of Kōke‘e ditch
• Enabling DHHL and beneficiaries to utilize lands around Pu‘u ‘Ōpae
• In-kind value of approximately $10 million capital investment and 

$135,000 annually

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 15

• Added benefits based on an understanding of DHHL needs

• Upper road improvements and maintenance

• Water delivery and storage for pastoral lots

• In kind value of approximately $875,000 capital investment 
and $15,000 annually

DHHL Benefits Not Related to Energy Project

How This Project Has Changed

• Differences from the 2012 Hydro Project Proposal 
– Added pumped storage and store and release components
– Reduction water
– Increase in infrastructure costs/benefits

• Market Changes
– Reduction in solar and storage pricing
– Rapid changes in battery technology and pricing

• What Role Does the New Project Proposal Play in KIUC Generation Portfolio?
– Solar generation component for pumping
– Ancillary services not base load power
– Dispatchable energy vs. intermittent energy
– Grid stability and reliability

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 16

Community & Agricultural Benefits
• Water is returned to streams
• Rehabilitation and long term maintenance of reservoirs and 

Kōke‘e ditch system
• Support for agriculture and food sustainability on west side
• Jobs through construction of Project
• Enables DHHL to utilize Pu‘u ‘Ōpae mauka lands - water, roads 

and power
• Improvement and maintenance of access roads – including to 

Pu‘u Lua Reservoir
• Fire suppression support

KIUC Benefits

• Member-owned legacy project that will store and 
generate power cost effectively and reliably

• Makes a significant contribution towards 100% 
renewable energy goal

• Supports more solar generation

• Provides diversity in portfolio

• Increased electrical grid system stability and reliability

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 17

Waimea River Mediation Agreement

• Petition filed by Earth Justice on behalf of Po‘ai Wai Ola and 
West Kaua‘i Watershed Alliance
– Amend interim instream flows
– Complaint filed against ADC and KAA for alleged waste of water on ditch systems

• Parties –Po‘ai Wai Ola and West Kaua‘i Watershed 
Alliance/Earth Justice, ADC, KAA, DHHL, and KIUC

• Mediation Settlement approved by Water Commission on 
April 18, 2017

• Unprecedented resolution of a water dispute in Hawai‘i

• More water for streams and Waimea River
– Required instream flow releases
– Modifications to diversions

• Installation of monitoring equipment and stream flow data collection
• Water for DHHL lands
• Water for KIUC project
• Reduced water for Waimea Mauka hydro
• Waiawa hydro will either be retired or rebuilt with reduced capacity (less 

water)
• Timeline with required action items

Mediation Agreement Points

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C



6/13/2017

Beneficiary Consultation on KIUC's 
Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro Project 18

Project Timeline

 2nd Half 
2017 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Land 
Agreements 

       

Engineering & 
Studies 

        

Studies & 
Permitting 

         

Construction & 
Commissioning 

         

 

Next Steps
1. The 30-day comment period is now open; comments are due by July 14, 2017

2. DHHL is still in negotiations with KIUC on the specific terms of the agreement.  

3. As required by law, DHHL has scheduled 2 public hearings on this project.  Both Public 
Hearings have been scheduled for Wednesday, July 12, 2017:

9:00 a.m. to Noon 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Kaua‘i State Office Building King Kaumuali‘i Elementary School, Cafe
Conference Rooms A and B 4380 Hanamā‘ulu Rd., Līhu‘e
3060 ‘Eiwa Street, 2nd Floor, Līhu‘e

4. Staff will prepare the Beneficiary Consultation report and will present it to the HHC at its 
Kaua‘i meeting (August 21-22, 2017)

5. At this time, a specific date for the Hawaiian Homes Commission to make a decision on 
KIUC’s request is not yet determined.

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit C

cachju
Text Box



����

����������

	
��������	�����������������������	�����	
�������
����������

�

������	
�����	
�

�� �����������������������������������  �!���"������������������"����#������$���%�

���!����&��������������"���'����� ������������� �������())�������#�����#�������

��*������#"������������!��! �����

+� �������� ,���!!��������!��-�'��.�'�����"��!��#"������'���������"��������'�����

��#� �!������

/� �"  �������#���������������������������0����� �������.�������������#� �!��������1���

�!������$"  �"�����"������������ ����������������())����#� �!�����%�

2� �"  ������ ����"�!��#����������� ��"�������!��"������!������ � ��������1����!��%�

���!����&����! ���"��.�"�����#� �!�����������1����!�������3����"��"��!���". ���

4� ��������������!!��#� �������"��!��-�'�3����$��������������������������"����"����$"  �� ���

.����"�����������!��-�'�%�

���!����&��5��3���������"����"����$�� ��.����"�����������!��-�'���

6� ����������7����)�������������'"��"������������������.����"������������%�

���!����&�����"��!���". �3�.����"#��������"��"�"'����'�������"������"������,�$�"'��

��#����'�����������'������������,��������  ��"��� �$3�"��"���"��"'� �������,������'���

��,����������(�!����������$"  ���'�"#��.����"���"�����������"��������'�����

��#� �!������������"��!��-�'����������������!!��#��3�())��$"  � ��7����.���'�"���

��������.�'�����())��'��������"���"�����������#�"����� �����������

"�!��#����������1�������.����"��(��3�������� ����$���3�())��� ���.����"���

.�'����������$�����$"  �.���#�"�. ������ �$����1����!�������*����������"�� ����

��'��!������������,������

8� ���������������"��7"�������,���� �'��"'�!��-�'��'��� ���������99�,������������$�� ��.������

������������0����� ������%�

���!����&������������������0����� �������'�������:'����64�,������

;� �"  ���"��!��-�'����"������!�. "'�����"�������%�

���!����&���"������$3�1����!���"��$"��"���������,�<����$���������"���"��

!���"."������

=� �����"������'�������<��"���������� ���%�������$�� ��"����7������())�����<������������

���� �����������"����"� ���#� �!����%�

���!����&������ �����������"����"������� ������������!����!���"��
!�'"� �

("���"'�������$�� ��������� ��������"��������'��������������"����"� �

��#� �!������

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



�+��

�9� �����������"��� �1 ���1�"��"�,�1��-�'�������$������'��'�������.��������$�� �� "7�����

����"�! ��������"�������� �"�!��!�����#�'���"������ ������

��� ����!!��������!��-�'������������  �$"����������&�

• �����������������������))���$���'�������$�����������,����7��  �����$����������

����7�!����������7�!����'���������������$���������"��!��-�'��"�#� #����$��

$���������'��>"�*������.��"��"������ "����

• �"�����"��!��-�'�3�$��'���$��7����������������������"��?�$"��������"��!��-�'�3�

$����#������"����

• �� ����������'�" �������#��'���������������"'� �����.�'7��������

• ������"��$�� ���@$�"A$�"$�"B�

• 	#���"��	.������"�"�����������!������ � ���������������$������"����3�"��$���*��

�'7��$ �������

• ���,�$������ 7"����.����'����'�"�����$����� "������������C"������������������

�. ����������������������'���������7��'�����������"� ������1����!���"��������������

��������7��'������������� ����������$�� �#���

• �(������������#����7���'���������"��$�������������!����+9�,���������,�$����

��7"���+9��0(����$����3�.������,�$������"����� ,�6��0(���������$"������������

�������$������$�,����"��!��-�'���  �$����������7��$����$���������$�$����#�����

��!���������"����,"���"�*��.�'�����������"���#����"��"��3�.���"�*��.�'����������*�����

$����������"�7�"�*������.����$�,������7��'����������� �������������7�,�������,����

��!!�����

�+� ����!!������"��!��-�'����������������$�"�� "���������!!����"��.�'�����$�����"��'��"����������

 ������())�������D����#��������������������"��������D���� ���������$�"�"�����������������

 ���������!�������������� ������ ����������64�,������

�/� ������� �������������.��������7����)�$�""���)�������������'"��"��������!!������"��

!��-�'��.�'�����"��$"  �!��#"���$������������"��"���#������� �������������D#��.����

�"���"�������,������������$������1 ������,�$"  �.����"���"�"�������"��������'����3�$�"'��"��

��."���� !���������(�!������������������� ,���!!��������!��-�'���

�2� ������� ������$������� "#��������������������� ��������#���$������!�!��3�.�������#�������

����$������������,�����������"���"���� ����������'��'�������E����:��! �3���$�����$��

��"������������$�����$"����#��,����$���������D��������7%�������D�����$����������������

���.��!"!���"�3�������,�����!��!��"���������F����"���"����$���'�����$�������%���������

�!!�������3��� ����������$������ �$��������������� �������'���'�  �!��������,��"����

���,D���!���"����!��� �������":��������"����,������

�

�����	�����	�
&�

� ������  �$"���$�"�����'��������$������.�"������������"�!���������$�"'��$����

!��#"���������������"��&�

�� 
����� ,�
�!!��������!��-�'��������!��!���������"��!��-�'��"������� !�����'�����"�,�����

���" "������� �������$�����.�'������������������������D����7�7�����"�������� $�,��$"���

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



�/��

����7��D����"���'��������  �����$��7"�����������!���"��!��-�'������������������������"������

���� ������7����  ������"��GGG�

+� �������� ,���!!������"��!��-�'��.�'�����"��$"  �!��#"�����'���������"��������'���������

���������#� �!�������������"���.����"'"��"������"�� ���������

/� �"  ���,���#����������������������"��!��-�'��.��������"���������#� �!������������ ������

!��!���,����1����!������$"  ����������"���.��! �'���"���������� ������%�

2� 
����� ,���!!��������!��-�'���

4� ��
����� ,���!!��������!��-�'�����$�����$"  �.����"���#��,����������'���������

"��������'�����$"  �.��'��! ������

6� �������� ,���!!��������!��-�'�������������"�!��#������������"������'���������

�����#�"�������������� ����"�!��#��������������� �����������������������������

8� (�������� ����"�!��#������.,������!��#"�����������������!���!������ � ��������.��

"�����������"�� "�����%�

;� (����������"����"����� ���.����"�%�

=� �������� ,���!!��������!��-�'��.�'�����$�����"��.�"������������!�$�����������.�"���

$�����GGG��0����������#���(���������������

�9� 
����� ,���!!��������.������������������'�����"�,H"� ������$���������$�. �������,��

��� �������� ,���!!������"��!��-�'��.�'���������  �����!��"�"#��.����"���())��$�� ��.��

�������������� ��� "7������"���H��'�������"��$�� ������� ,����"����E(�"���"���"���.������"�������

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



cachju
Text Box
Beneficiary Consultation Meeting on KIUC's Proposed Pumped-Storage Hydro ProjectJune 13, 2017, Kekaha

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit D



 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 

PROPOSED LAND DISPOSITION OF  

HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS FOR A HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT 

IN THE WAIMEA DISTRICT, ON THE ISLAND OF KAUAI 

 

 Public Notice is hereby given that the Hawaiian Homes Commission will 

conduct two (2) public hearings, pursuant to Chapter 171-95.3, Hawaii Revised 

Statutes, in Lihue, on the Island of Kauai in order to provide information on 

a proposed hydroelectric project and to hear comments on the proposed project.  

The public hearings have been scheduled as follows: 

 

Wednesday, July 12, 2017 

9:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon 

Kauai State Office Building 

Conference Rooms A & B 

3060 Eiwa Street, Lihue, HI 96766 

 

and 

 

Wednesday, July 12, 2017 

6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

King Kaumualii Elementary School Cafeteria 

4380 Hanamaulu Road, Lihue, HI  96766 

 

The Kauai Island Utility Cooperative (KIUC) is requesting a General Lease 

of 65 years that will involve the Puu Opae Reservoir and other Hawaiian Home 

Lands in the Waimea District of Kauai.  The KIUC proposes to repair, restore 

and maintain Puu Opae Reservoir and related water transmission lines in order 

to facilitate the provision of water for agricultural, pastoral and future 

homesteading needs and to develop a renewable energy project that integrates 

pumped storage and the storage and release of water to generate hydroelectric 

power.  Information on the proposed land disposition and the hydroelectric 

project will be presented at the beginning of each hearing.   

 

Native Hawaiian beneficiaries and members of the public are invited to 

attend one of the public hearings and to submit oral and/or written comments 

on the proposed leasing of Hawaiian Home Lands for the hydroelectric project.  

 

 Dated:  Honolulu, Hawaii, June 28, 2017  

 

      

 

      By JOBIE M. K. MASAGATANI, Chairman 

         Hawaiian Homes Commission 

         Department of Hawaiian Home Lands 

   State of Hawaii 

 

Honolulu Star-Advertiser         

The Garden Island    

West Hawaii Today 

Hawaii Tribune-Herald  

The Maui News        

julie
Text Box
EXHIBIT E:  PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

julie
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit E



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

1

Hawaiian Homes Commission
PUBLIC HEARINGS

on the
Proposed Land Disposition of Hawaiian Home 

Lands for a Hydroelectric Project in the
Waimea District, on the Island of Kaua‘i

Hawaiian Homes Commission
PUBLIC HEARINGS

on the
Proposed Land Disposition of Hawaiian Home 

Lands for a Hydroelectric Project in the
Waimea District, on the Island of Kaua‘i

Kaua‘i State Office Building

Conference Rooms A and B

Wednesday, July 12, 2017

9:00 a.m. to Noon

King Kaumuali‘i Elementary School 

4380 Hanamā‘ulu Rd., Līhu‘e

Wednesday, July 12, 2017

6:00 to 8:00 p.m.

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA

I. PULE

II. WELCOME– Deputy Director William Aila

III. INFORMAL PRESENTATION
• Purpose of the Public Hearing

• Background Information

• Proposed Hydroelectric Project

• How to Submit Public Testimony

IV. FORMAL PUBLIC HEARING
• Receive Public Testimony

� Sign-up to Testify (up to half-hour before close of Hearing)

� Please limit your testimony to 3 minutes

cachju
Text Box

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F

cachju
Text Box
EXHIBIT F:  PUBLIC HEARING PRESENTATION HANDOUT



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

2

PURPOSE OF THE PUBLIC HEARING
• To meet the requirements of Chapter 171-95.3, HRS which allows DHHL to 

General Lease lands for renewable energy development without public 

auction:

–The law requires the HHC to inform the public, prior to the leasing of DHHL lands 
for a  proposed renewable energy project, by conducting 2 Public Hearings on the 
island where the project would be located.

–The law requires the HHC to distribute an outline of the proposed renewable 
energy project and to receive testimonies.

• In May 2017, DHHL published a Public Notice stating our intention to General Lease a 

portion of our 15,000 acres of land in Waimea for a hydroelectric project through 

direct negotiation. 

• On June 28, 2017, DHHL published a Public Hearing Notice in local newspapers 

throughout the State.

Kaua‘i Island Plan, 2004

LEGEND

General Ag.

Pastoral

Special District

Future Devmt

Conservation

Residential

Subsistence Ag

Community Use

15,061 acres
(72% of HHLs on Kaua‘i)

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

3

Planning Context

The Kaua‘i Island Plan (2004) designates the Pu‘u ‘Ōpae area as 

“Special District” which indicates the presence of different resources that 
require more detailed planning.
• Water resource management and access roads are needed to utilize the 

lands for homesteading purposes.

West Kaua‘i Regional Plan (2011)
Priority Projects identified by Lessees:
• Develop Renewable Energy Projects Compatible 

with Agriculture
• Develop an Agricultural and Water Plan
˗ Pu‘u ‘Ōpae reservoir should be maintained and 

the irrigation system rehabilitated. 

• Guide for managing DHHL’s water kuleana
• Specific goal to seek reservations of water
˗ Waters set aside by CWRM and/or BLNR for future use by 

DHHL
˗ DHHL bases reservation petitions on: Island Plans, Regional 

Plans, short and long term needs, knowledge of the area
˗ 2017 DHHL submitted a water reservation petition for 6.9 

mgd to CWRM which was approved on June 20, 2017.

DHHL Water Policy Plan 2014DHHL Water Policy Plan 2014

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

4

Summary of KIUC’s Hydroelectric Proposal

• The Need
– Most of Kaua‘i’s daytime demand for electricity will soon be met with solar

– The challenge is moving cheap solar power to evening peak hours

– Pumped storage hydro stores solar energy and releases it when it’s most needed

• Pumped Storage Hydro
– Irrigation water is delivered through the ditch and project pipeline to DHHL lands

– The water is stored at Pu‘u Lua (a higher elevation) and released into Pu‘u ‘Ōpae (lower

elevation)

– The force of the falling water creates energy

– The water is stored at Pu‘u Ōpae (a higher elevation) and released into a reservoir on 

Mānā Plain (lower elevation)

– The force of the falling water creates energy again

– During the day, solar power is used to pump the water from the Mānā Plain up to Pu‘u

Ōpae where it is stored and released when it’s most needed

Summary of KIUC’s Hydroelectric Proposal

• The project can generate up to 25 MW of pumped storage hydro
– This will allow more solar PV capacity

• Primary project components
– Koke‘e ditch repairs, upgrades, and flow monitors

– Rehabilitation of Pu‘u Lua, Pu‘u ‘Ōpae, and Mānā reservoirs

– Two new sections of buried pipeline

– Two new powerhouses

• KIUC operates and maintains the Koke‘e Ditch system and Pu‘u Lua, Pu‘u
‘Ōpae, and Mānā Reservoirs

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

5

KIUC Proposal locationKIUC Proposal location

How Does the Project Work?

Solar Energy Pumps 
Water up during the Day

X
Water fills and 

is Stored

Water 
To 

fields
Water To 

fields

Filling 
from 

streams

Pu‘u Lua

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae

Mānā Plain

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

6

Filling 
from 

streams
Flowing down 

to generate 
Energy

Flowing down 
to generate 

Energy

Water 
To 

fields
Water 

To 
fields

Pu‘u Lua

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae

Mānā Plain

Pu‘u Lua
260 MG

Waiakoali

Diversion

Kawaikōī

Diversion

Kauaikinana

Diversion
Kōke‘e

Diversion

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae
88 MG

Mānā
44 MG

Kōke‘e Ditch

New Gates at Pu‘u Moe Divide

Open Ditch to ADC Mauka lands

New Pipe

DHHL Gravity Fed 
Irrigation

to Pastoral Lots

DHHL Irrigation
to areas above 

Pu‘u ‘Ōpae

DHHL gravity fed 
irrigation

from Pu‘u ‘Ōpae

Irrigation to KAA

New Mānā Pump House

New Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Pump House

DHHL Lands

Direction of Water Flow

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

7

KIUC Project Timeline

	 2nd
    Half    

2017    
2018    2019    2020    2021    2022    2023    

Land 

Agreements 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Engineering & 

Studies 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Studies & 

Permitting 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Construction & 

Commissioning 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

DHHL Benefits

• Delivery of water to DHHL mauka lands

• Rehabilitation and maintenance of Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir

• Road improvements and maintenance

• Electrical power at Pu‘u ‘Ōpae

• Enabling DHHL and beneficiaries to utilize lands around 
Pu‘u ‘Ōpae

Additional Benefits:

• Rehabilitation and maintenance of Pu‘u Lua Reservoir 

• Repairs/upgrades and maintenance and operation of 
Kōke‘e ditch

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

8

• Approved April 18, 2017—Unprecedented settlement

• Provides immediate water in streams

• Set fundamental principles

• Established Instream Flow Standards and Monitoring devices

• DHHL reserved its rights to petition for full long term water needs

• The first surface water reservation for DHHL

• Possible renewable energy on DHHL lands 

• Water for actual ADC / KAA uses

• Timeframe for KIUC to secure all land commitments

⁻ Beneficiary consultation needs explicitly considered

Mediation Agreement for the

Waimea Watershed Area

Mediation Agreement for the

Waimea Watershed Area

NEXT STEPS

• DHHL is in negotiations with KIUC on the terms of the 
agreement. 

• The Beneficiary Consultation report will be presented to 
the HHC on the 1st day of its Kaua‘i meeting (August 21, 
2017)

• The goal is for the HHC to consider a decision on the 65-
year General Lease to KIUC by August 22, 2017. 

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F



Public Hearing Handout on the Proposed 
Disposition of HHLs for KIUCʻs 
Hydroelectric Project

7/12/2017

9

�Oral testimony at this public hearing

�Written testimony:
• Handed in at this public hearing (yellow half-sheets)

• Mailed to the DHHL Planning Office, P.O. Box 1879, Honolulu, 

HI  96805

• Emailed to dhhl.planning@Hawaii.gov

COMMENTS ARE DUE IN A WEEK

DEADLINE FOR COMMENTS IS WEDNESDAY, JULY 19, 2017

How to Submit Testimony

Formal Public Hearing

to Receive Individual Testimonies

�Sign-up to Testify

�As a courtesy to others, please limit oral comments to 
3 minutes-there is no limit on written testimonies

�Commissioners are here to listen; they will not be 
responding to your comments

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit F



EXHIBIT G: 

TESTIMONIES RECEIVED DURING THE PUBLIC HEARINGS ON 

KIUC’S PROPOSED HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT, WAIMEA, KAUA‘I 

 

 

-1- 

1. STATE REPRESENTATIVE DEE MORIKAWA (District 16, South West Kauai and Niihau) 

stated that: 

• I am here to ask for your support on this project.   

• KIUC is owned by members; it is owned by all of us Kauai rate payers.  This 

proposed project benefits all of us, not just Hawaiian Home Land beneficiaries.  

• This project has been talked about for a long time.  When I first ran for office 7 

years ago, I met with a group of Kekaha homesteaaders who wanted support for 

a sustainable and educational farming concept for our future generations.  That 

plan was to utilize the Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir to provide the water needed to 

accomplish that proposal. Today, that “dream” can become reality with approval 

of the 65-year lease to KIUC. 

• KIUCʻs proposal to repair, restore and maintain Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir and related 

water transmission lines is a long-term comittment to assure that Hawaiian 

Home Lands, that have been unproductive, can finally afford beneficiaries the 

opportunity to farm and preserve our Hawaiian culture.   

• Any delay will jeopardize KIUCʻs plans and we cannot allow that to happen. 

• If there is any concern or desire to pursue royalties, let me remind you that we, 

members of KIUC, should not be bound to pay DHHL any more than what is 

being committed to in the maintenance of the reservoir and in the assurance 

that water will be available.   

• This project leads us into a more sustainable Kauai that benefits everyone.  So, I 

beg you to expedite this lease agreement, so this project can move forward.   

2. WILMA HOLI (see attached written comments) testified that: 

• She is the heir to the Title Deed for the Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Property, based on her 

geneaology and lineage (see written comments). 

• Only one (1) applicant asked for her permission to use the land for the 

hydroelectric project, but they were not selected. 

• DHHL does not have clear title to the land, therefore, what action is DHHL 

engaging in to ensure that the lease would be enforceable for 65-years? 

• Maybe this is another Wailua Coco Palms situation. 

3. JAMES NAKA‘AHIKI is a beneficiary on the west side.  He testified that: 

• He is very much in favor of the project 

• The project will give unlimited benefits to beneficiaries in the future—for future 

generations 

 

 

 

 

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



EXHIBIT G: 

TESTIMONIES RECEIVED DURING THE PUBLIC HEARINGS ON 

KIUC’S PROPOSED HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT, WAIMEA, KAUA‘I 

 

 

-2- 

4. DAVID BISSEL, PRESIDENT AND CEO OF KIUC (see attached written comments) testified 

that: 

• KIUC was one of the 5 participants in the historic settlement agreement and he 

hopes that all parties hold up their part of the agreement so there can be 

benefits to the native Hawaiian community. 

• Since 2009 KIUC and DHHL have been partners in developing renewable energy 

as evidenced by the achievement of the Anahola Solar Energy Project. 

• DHHL’s West Kaua‘i Regional Plan places emphasis on utilizing public-private 

partnership to mitigate costs on high priority projects such developing more 

housing, creating farming opportunities, spurring renewable energy production 

on Waimea Lands.  KIUC assigns significant value on this opportunity to assist 

DHHL in putting several priority projects into motion.  

• The Project will provide significant benefits; KIUC would pay for the following 

infrastructure improvements on DHHL lands (including engineering, design and 

applicable regulatgory approvals): 

- 12.5 KV power line from existing KIUC lines to Pu‘u ‘Ōpae 

- The upper and lower roads will be improved, maintained, and opened 

- Pu‘u ‘Ōpae will be rehabilitated—a restored asset 

- Open ditch replaced with pressurized pipeline 

- Intake and storage tank constructed at mauka boundary for pastoral lots 

for beneficiary use 

• KIUC would shoulder the following ongoing costs for 65 years: 

- Operation and maintenance of Pu‘u ‘Ōpae reservoir 

- Pu‘u ‘Ōpae road maintenance 

- Interest on the construction loan. 

• Improvements and ongoing maintenance/operation is an investment worth 

$50M over the term of the lease 

- Win-win situation. 

- Allow 150 homesteaders on land 

- 15,000 acres of land usable 

- All at no cost to DHHL 

• We are a utility—cost is a concern 

• But we think it can work. 

5. KAWAI WARREN (see attached written comments), DHHL BENEFICIARY RESIDING IN 

KEKAHA.  I am in support of the KIUC pump storage project.   

• KIUC pump storage project will help Kaua‘i reduce its dependency on fossil fuel 

• It will minimize water draw from our river 

• It will provide irrigation water for agriculture to DHHL lands and the Mānā plains. 

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



EXHIBIT G: 

TESTIMONIES RECEIVED DURING THE PUBLIC HEARINGS ON 

KIUC’S PROPOSED HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT, WAIMEA, KAUA‘I 

 

 

-3- 

• The pump storage project revitalizes three reservoirs:  Pu‘u Lua, Pu‘u ‘Ōpae and 

Mānā.  These reservoirs can provide a critical water storage supply for west side 

farming during the drier seasons.   

• This project would also support the State Constitutional obligation to the 

Hawaiian Homes Act of 1920.   

• This new irrigation route could also reduce 10 miles of antiquated irrigation 

ditches, and the Waiawa hydro which has been taking an unjustified 15-20 

million gallons of water per day out of Waimea River for the past 20 years. 

• The combination of utilizing the excess west side solar energy to move the water 

back up the Mānā slopes to the Pu‘u ‘Ōpae reservoir is an environmentally 

friendly energy storage system compared to batteries.   

• This will allow the expansion of residential solar systems on the westside. 

• The project supports the needs of Waimea River first, reduces our dependency 

on fossil fuel, provides irrigation water for Hawaiian Home Lands, and provides a 

better delivery irrigation system to the Mānā plains. 

6. CLYDE FUJIKAWA:  I was raised on the west side of Kaua‘i.  I am a full-time taro farmer 

and I support this project.  

7. LAUREL LOO:  I was born and raised on the west side of Kaua‘i—and graduated from 

Waimea High School.  I plan to retire on the west side.  As a life long resident of Hawai‘i 

and a Kaua‘i native, I support this project. 

8. ALLAN AMBROSE SMITH, CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR KAUAI ISLAND 

UTILITY COOPERATIVE 

• There are many benefits to the project: 

- Additional renewable energy for Kauai—20% of island’s power 

- Infrastructure improvements KIUC provides would open up more land for 

DHHL to develop homesteads or ag activities 

- The mediated agreement created interim instream flow standards for 

Waimea River which returns a significant portion of the flow back to the 

River. 

• We are ready and able to provide more than $50 million in infrastructure 

improvements and ongoing maintenance to the reservoirs, roads and irrigation 

infrastructure, in addition to drawing a power supply to the area and building an 

intake and storage tank for the pastoral lots 

• As a native Hawaiian born and raised in Kekaha on the west side, I could not be 

happier than to play a role in bringing this project to fruition. 

• As KIUC Board member I must be mindful of the economics of the project and 

insure that the cost does not unduly burden our coop members.  I am confident 

that if we put our heads together, we can achieve both goals. 

 

cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G



cachju
Text Box
ITEM G-1Exhibit G





- 2 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

per day (gpd) would be required for the 188 single family 
residential units planned for Phase I of DHHL’s Wailua 
Development. This development would be supplied by new 
potable well sources with a minimum capacity of 150 gallons 
per minute (gpm). DHHL’s proposed water supply and well 
improvements will include three wells in the Kapa`a 
homesteads and a new well and chlorination facility within 
Wailua homesteads. These water system assets would 
potentially be located along the mauka border of the Wailua 
development parcel. The estimated cost for the first two 
new water sources for Phase 1 of the Wailua residential 
development is $6 million. See Figure 1.  
 

Figure 1. DHHL Wailua Well No. 1 
 

  
Figure 1.  Location Map from Final Environmental 
Assessment DHHL Wailua Well No. 1 Project, August 2017 



- 3 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

 
To implement these plans, DHHL drilled Wailua Well #1 in 
2009.  The test pumping showed the well had a capacity to 
be pumped at a maximum rate of 200 gallons per minute 
(gpm), sufficient for the planned development in an area.  
In order to establish a future potable well, additional 
drilling, casing and testing is required. While exploratory 
well drilling is an exempt activity under DHHL’s list of 
exemptions from HRS Chapter 343 compliance, drilling, 
casing and testing a water source indeed requires 
compliance with Chapter 343. 
 
In FY 2014 the HHC appropriated funds to case the well, and 
a contract was awarded for work including: 
 

 Clearing and grubbing access to and within the site 
around the existing pilot hole; 

 Re-drilling and reaming a 16-inch minimum diameter 
hole approximately 145 feet deep and installing a 10-
inch steel casing; 

 Installation of a pump to test the yield and drawdown. 
 Conducting biological and chemical testing of the 

groundwater source for compliance with Safe Drinking 
Water standards; 

 Capping and securing the well for future development; 
 Submitting well data to Commission on Water Resources 

Management. 
 

Before work could commence, an Environmental Assessment was 
needed to comply with Chapter 343.  In a separate submittal 
this month, DHHL staff requests the HHC to declare a 
Finding of No Significant Impact based on the information 
provided in the Final Environmental Assessment (FEA) for 
the Wailua Well #1 Project. The total cost for these 
improvements is estimated at $350,000 (including design, 
construction, environmental protection, and construction 
management).  Construction is anticipated to take 
approximately three (3) weeks to complete. 
 
(2) Anahola Dams   
 
An agricultural water-distribution system, previously used 
by the Līhu`e Plantation until 1988, could be repurposed to 
provide water to DHHL’s Anahola agricultural lands. However 
surface-water intakes, ditches, and tunnels have not been 



- 4 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

regularly maintained since the decline of sugarcane 
cultivation. Thus, much of the surface water system is no 
longer in usable condition. In addition, DHHL must work 
with the DLNR-administered Hawaiʻi Dam Safety Program (HAR 
Chapter 13-190.1), which was created pursuant to the 
Hawaiʻi Dam and Reservoir Safety Act of 2007 (HRS Chapter 
179D).  This law, passed after the Kaloko Dam failure, 
sought to reduce the risk of dam or reservoir failure. 
These dam and reservoir safety laws govern the design, 
construction, operation, maintenance, alteration, and 
removal of dams, reservoirs, and appurtenant works. Dams 
less than six feet in height (regardless of capacity) or 
that have a storage capacity of less than 5 million gallons 
are not subject to State regulation; hence dams and 
reservoirs can be reduced in size to become “deregulated”. 
 
As a result of a lack of maintenance of this system and the 
new regulations described above, the potential adaptation 
and reuse of reservoirs, dams, and ditches is complex. Five 
reservoirs exist on DHHL land at Anahola and a sixth 
reservoir lies adjacent to these lands. See Figure 2. DHHL 
has been reviewing options related to the reservoirs and 
related infrastructure.  
 
DHHL engaged a Dam Feasibility Study that recommended the 
removal of two dams, and the reducing of the dam height and 
size of two reservoirs to remove them from the scope of 
State dam regulations.  The proposed cost of these actions 
is $3,000,000, which was appropriated by the 2014 
Legislature. Currently the project is in its design phase 
and will later be sent out to bid.  
 
In October 2015, DHHL identified potential Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIPs) for this system that it is 
advocating be incorporated in the update to the State’s 
Agricultural Water Use and Development Plan: 

 
i.  Reopening intake and tunnel repairs.  The intake 

requires renovation and portions of the tunnel are 
reportedly collapsing.  Forecasted development will 
take five years and cost $500,000. 

ii. New transmission line.  The Anahola ditch system is 
split between DHHL and a private land owner, who 
closed the transmission ditch at the property 
boundary.  DHHL could construct a new transmission 
line from the tunnel near Kaneha Reservoir to the 



- 5 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

Anahola Reservoirs (approximately 7,700 feet away).  
Forecasted development would take five years at a 
cost of $7,500,000. 

iii. Upgrade Upper and Lower Anahola Reservoir.  Upgrades 
to the spillway, inlet, outlet structures, 
embankment, and maintenance road, amongst other 
areas, are needed.  Forecasted development would 
take five years at a cost of $3,000,000.  

iv. Additional storage.  The main water storage for the 
system was purchased by a private owner, making it 
unavailable to the Anahola farming community.  Long-
term and larger storage facilities may be needed to 
supplement existing storage.  Forecasted development 
and cost are to be determined.  

v.  Lower Anahola ditch intake study.  Repairing the 
lower Anahola ditch may provide water for planned 
agricultural needs and DHHL developments, but the 
ditch requires repairs and possibly a new 
distribution system.  Forecasted development of the 
study would be in the next five to ten years and 
cost $200,000.  

vi. Lower Anahola Ditch System.  Pending study findings, 
reopening of lower Anahola ditch system could be 
pursued.  



- 6 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

 
Figure 2. Existing Anahola surface water system. 

Figure 2. DHHL’s Anahola lands include reservoirs created 
during previous plantation uses of the area. From DHHL, 
Anahola Regional Plan, at 16 (Jun. 2010). 
 
(3)  Anahola Farm Lots Water System (PWS #432) Improvements 
 Project   
 
In August 2016, the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) 

received notice of a funding award of $3 million in federal 

grant funds from the US Department of Agriculture (USDA) 

Rural Development. With DHHL’s contribution of $3.8 million, 

the total project cost is $6.8 million. These funds are to 

be used for major capital improvements to the DHHL Anahola 

Farm Lots Public (drinking) Water System (PWS #432), as 

defined by the State Department of Health. The system serves 

the Anahola Farm Lots and Bayview residents on Kaua‘i.  The 

system has a total of 77 connections:  45 agriculture 

lessees; 30 Bayview residential lessees; 1 non-homestead lot 

under a DHHL Revocable Permit; and an inter-connection to 

the County of Kaua‘i water system for emergency purposes. 

 



- 7 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

Improvements are needed to address the following: 

 

 Many components of the system have reached their useful 

life span and need to be replaced, such as the storage 

tank and distribution lines. 

 Improve water system pressure issues. 

 Address safety and security measures at the DHHL Water 

Storage Tank Site and at the Inter-connect site with 

the KDOW system. 

 Increase operational efficiencies of the well pumps, 

control valves, and fire protection facilities. 

 

The project is currently in the Engineering Design phase 

that is expected to be completed by September 2018.  Project 

construction is expected to be completed by August 2021.The 

project includes: 

 Replacement of the current 0.5MG steel storage water 

tank with a new 0.5MG concrete tank. 

 Construction of a new distribution system with a High 

Pressure Zone and a Low Pressure Zone. 

 Increasing security at the tank site and at the County 

inter-connect site. 

 Install new SCADA control facilities, smart meters, new 

chlorination system, and new emergency generator. 

 
(4) Draft Water Credit and Management Procedures   
 
This item arose from an Anahola homesteader’s request for a 
water meter for a new parcel created through subdivision of 
an existing residential lot.  DHHL holds water credits, 
which the homesteader requested be allocated in order to 
receive the water meter.  The DHHL Land Management Division 
has previously issued water meter credits for non-
homesteading uses at a cost of $4,600.   
 
Part IV (13) of the HHC’s Water Policy Plan (WPP), approved 
July 22, 2014 (WPP), provides as a goal:  
 

Water credits held by the Department are a valuable 
trust asset.  They should be methodically and 
consistently managed and allocated in accordance with 
the Constitutional and statutory authorities and Plans 
and Policies of the Department. 

 
Water credits are obtained by DHHL from the various County 
Departments / Boards of Water Supply through agreements. 



- 8 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

Those credits are issued under the various state and county 
authorities that govern those bodies. 
 
DHHL follows a three-tiered planning system to guide 
development and management of its land holdings for the 
benefit of current and future beneficiaries.  The planning 
system includes its over-arching General Plan, followed by 
its second tier of Strategic Program Plans and Island Plans 
followed again by Regional and Development Plans in its 
third tier.   Water credits are to be used to achieve the 
prioritized purposes in those plans.   
 
In accord with the Part IV(13) of the WPP and beneficiary 
requests, DHHL staff and consultants have drafted an 
“Internal Process for Management of Water Credits” that is 
pending further internal review.  Water credit management 
procedures will clarify the manner in which the DHHL may 
allocate excess credits, to whom, and under which 
conditions.  Following internal review by staff and the 
Chairman, it will be presented to the HHC for approval. 
 
(5) Moloa`a Opportunities   
 
The Moloa`a agricultural community is located north of 
Anahola. DHHL holds 316 acres of undeveloped land in 
Moloa`a. There are no homesteads on the property and the 
land is currently used for grazing. The Kaua`i Island Plan 
land use designations and proposed development for Moloa`a 
consist of the following:  
 

Subsistence 
Agriculture 

47 three-acre lots on 200 acres 

General Agriculture 86 acres on steep topography  
Special District 30 acres along the stream  

 
Wet conditions, intermittent stream flow and the steep 
topography make portions of these areas unsuitable for 
buildings. Rainfall averages 80 inches per year on the 
makai lands and 120 inches per year on the mauka lands. 
Rainfall catchment systems could provide sufficient potable 
water for uses in Moloa`a. 
 
While there is no DWS system in the area, the Moloa‘a 
Irrigation Cooperative (MIC) owns and operates an 
agricultural water system adjacent to DHHL’s property.  MIC 
has been utilizing water on a month to month revocable 



- 9 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

permit from Moloa‘a Well No. 1 (USGS no. 1020-02) located 
on State lands at Kawaihau, mauka of Moloa‘a, but is now 
looking into their own source development because of access 
and easement issues.  There is still an opportunity for 
DHHL to partner with MIC on source and system improvements 
that could provide water to DHHL’s Moloa‘a lands.   
 
The Commission on Water Resource Management and Department 
of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) are looking at leasing 
water from Moloa‘a Well No. 1 (USGS no. 1020-02) per HRS 
171-58.  As part of that process, DHHL will need to work 
with DLNR and determine a water reservation for DHHL’s 
current and foreseeable needs.  In addition, DHHL is 
entitled to 30% of all revenues from the water lease that 
will be issued via auction to qualified bidders. 
   
(6)  Waimea Surface Water Reservation request and Other 
 Actions Authorized by the HHC 
 
 DHHL owns 15,061 acres of land at Waimea, Kaua`i.  The 
Waimea lands, which are part of the original lands set 
aside by Congress in 1921 for this trust in the HHCA, 
comprise of 73 percent of the DHHL land holdings on Kaua`i.   
Two major irrigation systems withdraw water from the Waimea 
river and its tributaries: the Koke`e Ditch System and the 
Kekaha Ditch System.   
 
On January 15, 2013, the HHC authorized the Chairman to 
take various possible actions to secure water for current 
and foreseeable development and use on its landholdings in 
the area. 
 
On November 17, 2015, DHHL filed with the State of Hawaii 

Commission on Water Resources Management a Petition for 

Reservation of surface water of 33.145 Million Gallons Per 

Day originating from the watershed of, and tributary to, the 

Waimea River and diverted by the Köke`e and Kekaha Ditch 

Systems (including water originating in Waikoali, Kawaiköï, 

Kauaikinana, and Köke`e Streams and other tributaries of the 

Waimea River) for use in the Waimea, Kaua`i Hawaiian Home 

Lands. 



- 10 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

 
Figure 3. Koke`e Ditch Irrigation System. 

 

 
Figure 3. DHHL ’s Waimea lands currently use some 
irrigation water from the Koke`e Ditch and could be further 
irrigated by that system. From DHHL, West Kauaʻi Regional 
Plan, at 16 (Mar. 2011). 
 
 

On April 17, 2017, the HHC approved entering into a 

mediation agreement concerning water allocation in the 

Waimea Watershed Area on Kaua‘i. 

 

On April 18, 2017, State of Hawaii Commission on Water 

Resources Management approved a Mediation Agreement for the 

Waimea Watershed Area between DHHL, KIUC, the Pö‘ai Wai 

Ola/West Kaua‘i Watershed Alliance, the State of Hawaii 

Agribusiness Development Corporation, and the Kekaha 

Agriculture Association (“Mediation Agreement”) which 

instantly returned water back to Waimea River, provided 

water for a hydroelectric project, and ensured water for 

homesteading and agricultural needs. 

 



- 11 - 
 

ITEM NO. G-2 
 

On April 25, 2017, DHHL filed with the State of Hawaii a 

Modified Petition for Reservation of surface water of 6.903 

Million Gallons Per Day originating from the watershed of, 

and tributary to, the Waimea River and diverted by the 

Köke`e and Kekaha Ditch Systems (including water originating 

in Waikoali, Kawaiköï, Kauaikinana, and Köke`e Streams and 

other tributaries of the Waimea River) for use in the 

Waimea, Kaua`i Hawaiian Home Lands 

 

On June 20, 2017, the State of Hawaii Commission on Water 

Resources Management granted DHHL’s Modified Petition for 

Reservation of surface water of 6.903 Million Gallons Per 

Day originating from the watershed of, and tributary to, the 

Waimea River and diverted by the Köke`e and Kekaha Ditch 

Systems (including water originating in Waikoali, Kawaiköï, 

Kauaikinana, and Köke`e Streams and other tributaries of the 

Waimea River) for use in the Waimea, Kaua`i Hawaiian Home 

Lands. This is the first surface water reservation ever 

issued to DHHL or any other entity. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
None; for information only. 
 





 
- 2 – 

ITEM NO. G-3 
 

Kaua‘i Island Land use designations and acreage amounts 

 

Land Use Acres Percent of total

Residential 1,190 5.79%

Subsistence Ag 1,204 5.85%

Supplemental Ag 0 0

Pastoral 623 3.03%

General Ag 13,684 66.54% 

Special district 2,812 13.67% 

Community Use 211 1.03%

Conservation 693 3.37%

Commercial 132 .64%

Industrial 16 .08%

Total 20,565 100%

 

Kaua`i Island Plan (2004) – Residential Priorities 

 

1. Residential Lots in Wailua (231 lots) 

 Off-site water wells and storage facilities and on-

site roads and water and sewage transmission lines 

are required.  Additionally, intersection 

improvements and fill is needed to level a 

topographic depression.  Status:  Declaration of 

Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) and the 

Final Environmental Assessment to cap and case an 

existing exploratory well to be considered in 

separate submittal. 

 

2. Residential Lots in Hanapëpë (40 lots) 

 Project can be completed without major off-site 

infrastructure costs.  Status:  Legislature approved 

$1 million in CIP funding for FY 18 for planning, 

design, and construction of Phase 2 of residential 

subdivision.  Planning Office will be doing a Master 

Plan and Environmental Assessment for all 365 acres 

of its Hanapëpë lands. 

 

3. Residential Lots in Anahola/Kamalomalo`o (350 lots) 

 This area is prioritized because there are larger 

tracts of undeveloped land that can be served by the 

existing wells, but a sewage treatment plant should 

be constructed. Status:  A total of 20 vacant lots 

were selected on January 21, 2017 by undivided 

interest beneficiaries in Phase 1 of Pi‘ilani Mai Ke 

Kai homestead (2 vacant lots remain in Phase 1).  

There are 51 vacant lots that will be available in 

Phase 2 of Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai. 

 



 
- 3 – 

ITEM NO. G-3 
 

Wailua Regional Plan (2009) Priority Projects 

 

1. Cultural Resources Inventory – Malae Heiau Restoration 
Project, Wailua River State Park 

 Wailua presents an opportunity to promote the 

concept of the importance of cultural significance 

and archaeological sites. Status:  The Kaua‘i Island 

Plan identifies a cultural buffer on DHHL lands 

along Wailua River by designating the lands as 

Special District.  Future discussions on how to 

protect and manage these cultural sites will need to 

be discussed as Wailua is planned for development. 

 

2. Potable Water Sources 

 A Water Master Plan for the proposed DHHL Wailua 

Subdivision was completed in January 2009.  Source, 

Storage and Transmission of water continues to be 

needed to support development. Status:  Declaration 

of Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) and the 

Final Environmental Assessment to cap and case an 

existing exploratory well to be considered in 

separate submittal. 

 

3. Kälepa Ridge Surface Water System Maintenance 

 DHHL is looking at opportunities to utilize this 

surface water resource for agricultural uses for the 

proposed Wailua development.  The community has 

expressed interest in creating agricultural lots to 

feed their families.  Status:  Staff is coordinating 

with Agribusiness Development Corporation (ADC) and 

the Commission on Water Resource Management (CWRM) 

on potential allocation and use of water in the 

region. 

 

4. Kapa`a Relief Route 

 The Hawai`i Department of Transportation’s (DOT) 

number one priority on Kaua`i was the Kapa`a Relief 

Route and considered four alternative alignments 

through, or alongside, DHHL’s Wailua lands.  Status:  

Staff continues to coordinate with the County of 

Kaua‘i and DOT on the road alignment. 

 

5. Wailua Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility 

 The Wailua Wastewater Treatment Plant requires 

expansion and potential relocation due to recent 

growth in the area and as a function of the long-

term wastewater treatment capacity needs for the 

Wailua-Kapa`a area.  Status:  Staff continues to 



 
- 4 – 

ITEM NO. G-3 
 

coordinate with County of Kaua‘i on the potential 

relocation and expansion of the treatment plant. 

 

Anahola Regional Plan (2010) Priority Projects 

 

1. Ke Aloha O Kö Käkou `Äina, the Anahola Town Center Plan 
(ATCP)* 

 Continue the support of the community created ATCP 

as a gathering place.  

 

2. Anahola Clubhouse and Park Improvements 

 The Anahola Club House and Community Park is a 

valuable community resource.  Improvements are 

underway by the County to ensure safety and 

continued use.   

 

3. Secure & Manage Surface Water Resources (non-potable) 

 A USGS study was conducted on Anahola Stream to look 

at availability of water resources.  Reservoirs were 

assessed, recommendations for remediation, removal, 

and de-regulating were developed, and construction 

work to be conducted soon. Status:  Dam construction 

pending design modifications per DLNR Dam Safety.    

 

4. Support Kanuikapono 21st Century Ahupua`a Place Based Labs 

 Kanuikapono is a charter school in Anahola which 

integrates resource management of natural and 

cultural resources within the ahupua`a.  

 

5. Improve Road and Traffic Circulation to Kühiö Highway 

 The proposed project seeks to improve road connectivity 

in Anahola by increasing direct access to Kühiö 

Highway.   

 

Other Anahola Updates 

 

 The Anahola Farmers Market was re-opened and the 

Kalalea Anehola Farmers Hui made up of the 47 

Anahola homestead farmers is managing the market and 

working towards a long term disposition. 

 

 The Anahola Hawaiian Homes Association and the 

Homestead Community Development Corporation are 

working towards a land disposition for the Kumu 

Youth Camp facility located at Anahola Bay.  They 

are resolving a waste water treatment violation from 

the Department of Health. 

 



 
- 5 – 

ITEM NO. G-3 
 

 The Anahola Hawaiian Homes Association and the 

Homestead Community Development Corporation as part 

of the Town Center plan are exploring economic 

development opportunities which includes tiny homes 

and by working with the Small Business Association 

to develop micro businesses and other community 

based initiatives. The Association understands that 

there is a need to modify their license agreement to 

include the new uses and comply with various 

regulations.  

 

 DHHL with USDA funding is in the process of 

improving the Anahola Farm lots and Bay View water 

system. 

 

 DHHL is expanding Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai with new 

awards and there are discussions with the 

Association to use portions of the buffer area 

surrounding the homesteads to manage the homeless 

camps and also manage fires in the area. 

 

 DHHL is working with the County to address the 

coastal erosion of Aliomanu Road which could affect 

homesteaders in the area. 

 

West Kaua`i Regional Plan (2010) 

 

1. Develop an Agricultural & Water plan 

 Three-part project that calls for the restoration 

and use of Pu`u `Öpae. Status:  The HHC issued the 

Kekaha Hawaiian Homestead Associations a license to 

231 acres of lands at Pu‘u ‘Öpae  to implement the 

first phase of their master plan.  DHHL has 

contracted G70 to assist DHHL in developing a 

Special Area Plan for its Waimea lands that 

coordinates planning, design, and implementation of 

land uses and homestead development around and 

adjacent to Pu‘u ‘Öpae.   

 

2. Develop a Multi-purpose, Evacuation & Education 
Center/Shelter 

 This multi-purpose facility would serve as a culture 

and education center when not used as a disaster 

shelter.  Status:  Implementation pending. 

 

3. Support the Development of the Kekaha Enterprise Center 

 The Kauai Community College and the Council for 

Native Hawaiian Advancement developed the 2,000 



 
- 6 – 

ITEM NO. G-3 
 

square foot single story facility on 2.629 acres 

which is used to provide social and community 

services to the Beneficiaries living in Kekaha.  

Status:  Project completed and in operation. 

 

4. Develop Renewable Energy Projects Compatible with 
Agriculture 

 The community indicated a willingness to support 

projects that meet the goals of compatibility with 

agriculture. Status: DHHL will consider issuing a 

General Lease to KIUC for a hydroelectric project on 

its Waimea, Kaua‘i lands via separate submittal. 

 

5. Develop Agricultural Uses for Hanapëpë Farm Lots/Lease 
Areas 

 The existing lots in Hanapëpë are too narrow and 

feel crowded.  Residents have expressed a desire to 

use the area behind their lots for agricultural 

uses, recreational uses or simply as open space.  

Status:  Implementation pending. 

 

Other West Kaua‘i Updates 

 

 DHHL is working with the Kekaha Hawaiian Homestead 

Association to finalize their license document for 

the Pu‘u ‘Öpae Farm and Irrigation project. 

 

 DHHL Awarded a Peer to Peer and Capacity Building 

Grant to the Kekaha Hawaiian Homestead Association 

which will be integrated into the Pu‘u ‘Öpae Farm and 

Irrigation project to help farmers in the Waimea area. 

  

RECOMMENDED ACTION/MOTION: 

 

None; For information only. 
 













































































DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

August 21 & 22, 2017 
LIHU‘E, KAUAʻI  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

H-ITEMS 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
OFFICE 

 
 
 
 







DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

August 21 & 22, 2017 
LIHU‘E , KAUAʻI  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

J-ITEMS 

GENERAL AGENDA 
 
 
 
 










	Ditems.PDF
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	FINAL G-1 BC KIUC Hydro Waimea August 2017.pdf
	Beneficiary Consultation sign in and comments 6.13.172.pdf
	Untitled
	Untitled
	Untitled





